1989

Kennecott Corporation, Morton Thiokol, Inc.,  
Barrick Resources (Usa) Inc., and Hercules,  
Incorporated, v. Utah State Tax Commission, R.  
Hal Hansen, Roger O. Tew, Joe B. Pacheco, G. Blaine  
Davis, Tom L. Allen, Edward T. Alter, Arthur L.  
Monson, and Grant L. Pendleton : Brief of  
Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

### JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF CASE

This Court has jurisdiction of this appeal pursuant to Article VIII, Section 3 of the Utah Constitution, Utah Code Ann. § 78-2-2 (1989), and Rule 4 of the Rules of the Utah Supreme Court.

This is an appeal by Kennecott Corporation, Morton Thiokol, Inc., Barrick Resources (USA) Inc., and Hercules, Incorporated (hereinafter referred to as the "Coalition") from a Summary Judgment and Final Order entered on August 7, 1989 by the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, in favor of Utah State Tax Commission, et. al.<sup>1</sup> (hereinafter referred to as the "County and State defendants"), holding that (1) the Coalition members lacked standing to contest the constitutionality of Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987); (2) Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987) furthers a statewide purpose and is thus constitutional; and (3) Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987) does not mandate revenue sharing in violation of Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution.

---

<sup>1</sup> All parties to this proceeding are listed in the caption of this case.

### ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Do the Coalition members have standing to challenge the constitutionality of Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987), which establishes a system for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes?

2. Does Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987) impose upon the Coalition an obligation to pay state taxes for the benefit of Salt Lake and Tooele Counties<sup>2</sup> in violation of Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution?

3. Does the revenue distribution aspect of Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987) mandate revenue sharing between counties in violation of Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution?

### CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS

Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution provides:

The Legislature shall not impose taxes for the purpose of any county, city, town or other municipal corporation, but may, by law vest in the corporate authorities thereof respectively, the power to assess and collect taxes for all purposes of such corporation. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary.

---

<sup>2</sup> The Coalition members also own property in Box Elder, Davis and Utah counties which have also imposed upon Coalition members ad valorem taxes pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15; however, only Salt Lake and Tooele counties are named defendants to this action.

contained in this Constitution, political subdivisions may share their tax and other revenues with other political subdivisions as provided by statute.

Senate Bill 151, 1986, Utah Laws Ch. 109 Section 1, Codified at Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15, is set forth in Appendix A to this brief.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Nature of the Proceedings. In 1987, the Coalition members, as taxpayers in Utah, had imposed upon them an assessment, collection, and distribution levy under Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 in the amount of .0005 of the assessed value of their property. Record at 9. On May 25, 1988, the Coalition commenced this action by filing a Complaint in the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah. Record at 2-37. The Coalition's Complaint, as amended, sought a declaratory judgment that the Act violated various provisions of the state and federal constitutions, recovery of taxes paid under protest, and injunctive relief enjoining enforcement of the Act. Record at 53-66. The Coalition's first claim for relief asserts that the Act is unconstitutional because it violates Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution. Record at 57-60.

The County and State defendants answered the Complaint. Record at 67-90 and 273-280. The Coalition and County defendants

then filed reciprocal motions for partial summary judgment with supporting affidavits and exhibits with respect to the Coalition's first claim for relief.<sup>3</sup> Record at 98-137 and 270-272.

2. Decision of the Court. On April 11, 1989, the district court entered a Memorandum Decision, attached hereto as Exhibit A (Record at 291-300), and on August 7, 1989, entered a Summary Judgment, Final Order, and Certification, attached hereto as Exhibit B (Record at 308-311). The district court ruled that the Coalition members lacked standing to contest the constitutionality of Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987) under Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution; that Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987) is in furtherance of resolving matters of statewide concern, and therefore, is constitutional under Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution; and that the revenue distribution aspect established by Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987) does not mandate revenue sharing between counties, and,

---

<sup>3</sup> The State defendants have preferred to remain neutral throughout the entire proceeding, having neither joined nor participated in either party's summary judgment motion. The State defendants are in a difficult and inconsistent position since the Tax Commission Chairman has filed an affidavit describing what he sees as the expedient benefits of the Act (Record at 260-263), while the Attorney General has opined that the Act is unconstitutional. Record at 14-29.

therefore, does not violate Article XIII, Section 5 which permits only consensual revenue sharing. Record at 309. Based on the foregoing, the district court denied the Coalition's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment and granted the County defendants' Motion for Partial Summary Judgment as it pertained to the constitutionality of Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 (1987) under Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution. Record at 310. Pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, the district court certified that there was no just reason to delay the Coalition from taking an appeal from the present Summary Judgment and Final Order. Record at 310.

The district court determined in its Memorandum Decision "that Section 17-19-15 is in furtherance of resolving a matter of statewide concern, and as such is constitutional under Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution." Record at 297. As a basis for its determination, the district court adopted the arguments the County defendants made in their Memorandum In Response To Motion For Partial Summary Judgment And In Support Of Defendants' Cross-Motion For Summary Judgment, attached hereto as Exhibit C. Record at 177-215. The district court also ruled that the revenue distribution aspect of the Act does not mandate revenue sharing, but rather provides for consensual revenue sharing since it "merely provides that where



counties generate proceeds in excess of budgeted amounts that are the result of a uniform statewide tax levy, that those excess funds may be diverted to other counties in conformity with the funding programs in the spirit of the statewide purpose of uniformity assessment valuation." Record at 297 (emphasis added). Additionally, the district court noted that the Utah Association of Counties, the Utah League of Cities and Towns, and the Utah State School Board Associations have, on behalf of their members, supported Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15 and, on that basis, concluded that "even if the statutory provision mandated revenue sharing, it would not be offensive to Article XIII, Section 5, because the counties do so voluntarily." Record at 298.

Finally, the district court ruled that the Coalition members do not have standing to bring this lawsuit because the individual counties or their elective representatives are the only entities that have standing. Record at 297.

3. Statement of Facts. In the 1986 General Session of the Utah Legislature, the Utah Legislature enacted Senate Bill No. 151, codified at Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15, entitled "An Act Relating to Counties; Providing for the Collection, Assessment, and Distribution Costs Charged by the County and Providing an Effective Date" (hereinafter referred to as the "Act"). The Act imposes a mandatory statewide levy upon all real property for the

purpose of defraying costs incurred by Utah's counties in assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes for, in behalf of, and to various taxing entities and districts located within each county's geographical boundaries.

Before the Act became effective, each county was responsible for budgeting the costs for assessment, collection and distribution of property taxes for that county. Each county determined the categories of costs and expenses involved in the assessment, collection, and distribution of property taxes it levied. The individual county then set a tax rate at the appropriate level to fund these costs. The state did not participate, nor did it have any responsibility, in determining county budgets and did not participate in levying taxes to fund these county purposes.

Under the Act's provisions, individual counties no longer have the discretion to identify, budget, and levy for costs the county deems legitimate. Each county is now required to separately budget for certain categorical costs incurred in the assessment, collection, and distribution of property taxes and related appraisal programs for submission to the state auditor for review. The counties no longer set a local tax rate to cover these costs. Utah Code Ann. § 17-19-15(1).

The budget submitted to the state auditor is limited to certain categories of allowable costs which the state auditor establishes, and is subject to certification for compliance with these set categories. Id. § 17-19-15(2). After certification by the state auditor, the aggregate costs of each county are transmitted to the State Tax Commission "for determination of a mandatory statewide tax rate sufficient to meet these expenditures." Id. § 17-19-15(3) (emphasis added). The tax rate set by the State Tax Commission may not exceed a maximum of .0005 per dollar of taxable value of taxable property, with certain exceptions. Id. § 17-19-15(4). Any revenues received by a county pursuant to the provisions of the Act, in excess of the amount of its certified budget, are required to be transmitted to the state treasurer for distribution to other counties. Id. § 17-19-15(6).

The result of this redistribution scheme created by the Act is that the counties with a large property tax base subsidize counties with a smaller property tax base. In short, two groups of counties result; some counties are "exporting counties" and other are "importing counties." Record at 166.<sup>4</sup>

---

<sup>4</sup> See also Affidavit of Auston Johnson, III and its attached Exhibit A1. Apparently due to oversight, the Johnson Affidavit Footnote continued on next page.

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Article XIII, Section 5 is a specific constitutional prohibition against the state legislature's imposition of taxes for county purposes or functions. The purpose of this constitutional proscription is to preserve the autonomy of local governments by precluding state officials from influencing or deciding local issues. This Court has repeatedly interpreted this constitutional provision as prohibiting the state from levying taxes for county purposes.

The Act imposes a mandatory statewide tax for the purpose of funding local county functions in violation of Article XIII, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution. Because the Act violates Article XIII, Section 5, the district court erred in granting summary judgment to the County defendants. While

---

Footnote continued from previous page.

and the Motion to Supplement the Record requesting permission to enter the Johnson Affidavit into evidence was not made a part of the record. However, the County defendants' Motion to Strike the Affidavit of Auston Johnson, III is part of the record (Record at 282-286) and is referenced in the district court's Memorandum Decision when the district court declined to strike the Johnson Affidavit from the record. Record at 292. Thus, the Johnson Affidavit was apparently omitted by error. The Johnson Affidavit is attached hereto as Exhibit D. On December 28, 1989, the Coalition filed a Motion to Correct the Record in the district court to have the Johnson affidavit and its exhibits included in the record.

legislative statutes are presumed valid, the judiciary has the responsibility to ensure that the safeguards placed in our Constitution are preserved. Characterizing the Act as being for statewide purposes cannot and does not override a specific constitutional prohibition. To so hold renders Article XIII, Section 5 meaningless because the state could levy for county purposes at any time under the guise that a statewide purpose is being furthered.

Each Coalition member has standing to contest the provisions of the Act. This Court clarified standing guidelines in Terracor v. Utah Board of State Lands & Forestry, 716 P.2d 796 (Utah 1986). The Coalition members meet all of the three criteria this Court listed: First, the Coalition members have "suffered some distinct and palpable injury that gives [the Coalition] a personal stake in the outcome of the legal dispute." Id. at 799. Second, no one else has "a greater interest in the outcome of the case and the issues are unlikely to be raised at all unless [the Coalition] has standing to raise the issue." Id. And third, the issue raised in this appeal is unique and of great public importance which should be decided in furtherance of the public interest. Id.

Finally, the Act mandates revenue sharing amongst counties. Regardless of whether the counties agree to share

revenues, the Act is written in the imperative mode, mandating compliance. The Act does not provide for consensual revenue sharing, and this clearly violates the Constitution, which permits only consensual sharing. Furthermore, the counties have failed to take appropriate and necessary actions under which legal consent to share revenues is authorized. Informal county actions or the vote of county associations are not the requisite actions to be taken by a county in order to authorize revenue sharing. Therefore, the revenue sharing scheme fails for lack of proper authorization.

#### ARGUMENT

Introduction. Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provides that Summary Judgment is appropriate if there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. Bowen v. Riverton City, 656 P.2d 434 (Utah 1982). Although it was appropriate for the district court to grant summary judgment in the absence of factual disputes, the district court erred in granting the County defendants' Motion for Partial Summary Judgment because the Act violates Article XIII, Section 5. The Coalition, rather than the County defendants, is entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law. Accordingly, the district court's summary judgment and

final order should be reversed with directions to enter summary judgment for the Coalition.

I. THE COALITION MEMBERS HAVE STANDING TO CHALLENGE THE CONSTITUTIONALITY OF UTAH CODE ANN. § 17-19-15.

The district court erred in holding that the Coalition members lacked standing to contest the constitutionality of the Act. This Court, in Terracor, supra at 798, summarized Utah case law on standing as follows:

The first general criterion is that the '[p]laintiff must be able to show that he has suffered some distinct and palpable injury that gives him a personal stake in the outcome of the legal dispute.'

Second, if a Plaintiff does not have standing under the first criteria, he may have standing if no one else has a greater interest in the outcome of the case and the issues are unlikely to be raised at all unless that particular Plaintiff has standing to raise the issue.

Third, even though standing is not found to exist under the first two criteria, a Plaintiff may nonetheless have standing if the issues are unique and are of such great public importance that they ought to be decided in furtherance of the public interest.

The Coalition members satisfy each of these standards. First, as taxpayers and owners of real property, the Coalition members are directly affected by the distribution of tax proceeds. Indeed, the distribution scheme of the Act requires the

Coalition to pay a tax, which, in part, would not be otherwise due. More importantly, because the levy assessed against the Coalition reflects the counties' budgeted costs in which the Coalition has no presence, the Coalition members have suffered a real and "palpable" injury. If the Coalition members do not have standing to contest the constitutionality of this distribution scheme, they will be denied an opportunity to seek any redress since they have no right to representation before counties in which they have no presence or property (but yet are bearing the costs of county assessment operations). For this reason, the Coalition members have the requisite "personal stake in the outcome of the legal dispute." Id.

Second, no one else has a greater interest in the outcome of this case than Coalition members or similarly situated taxpayers. Unless the Coalition raises this issue it is unlikely to be raised at all. The Coalition members own substantial property in Tooele, Box Elder, Utah, Davis, and Salt Lake Counties and pay substantial taxes under the Act. Most other taxpayers have less valuable property and cannot justify the necessary legal expenses to challenge the Act. Moreover, this Court has previously held that local taxpayers have standing to contest state tax levies to fund county functions (school fund budget



items). In Olson v. Salt Lake City School District, 724 P.2d 960, 962-63 (Utah 1986), (footnote 1), this Court stated:

We find that applying the general principles enunciated in the cases noted, individual taxpayers in Salt Lake City would be granted standing on the basis that there are no more likely appellants and the issue is otherwise unlikely to be raised.

Third, the issues presented in this case are unique and of great public interest. Certainly a statutory taxing scheme which affects every property owner in Utah by imposing a mandatory statewide levy on each of the 29 counties in this state is of great public importance.

One additional criteria frequently overlooked in the Terracor decision is found in footnote four on page 799 which states that "[i]n addition, taxpayers may have standing to challenge an illegal expenditure." This additional criteria was previously recited in Jenkins v. Swan, 675 P.2d 1145, 1153 (Utah 1983) wherein this Court stated that "[it] has long held that a taxpayer has standing to prosecute an action against municipalities and other political subdivisions of the state for illegal expenditures." See also Olson v. Salt Lake City School District, supra at 962-63, footnote 1. A taxpayer's right to sue over the illegal use of public monies has been extended to include an action against the state. Jenkins, supra at 1153. To have

standing to challenge the Act the Coalition need not show injury.

In Jenkins, this Court stated:

'[A] taxpayer should be permitted to enjoin the unlawful expenditure of tax monies in which he has a pecuniary interest, or to prevent increased levies for illegal purposes.' In arriving at this conclusion, we quoted with approval the following language of the Illinois Supreme Court:

We have repeatedly held that taxpayers may resort to a court of equity to prevent the misapplication of public funds, and that this right is based upon the taxpayers' equitable ownership of such funds and their liability to replenish the public treasury for the deficiency which would be caused by the misappropriation.

Id. (citations omitted).

Finally, it should be noted that one of the Coalition members has a further right to standing pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 59-2-1411 (1987). Kennecott Corporation paid its 1987 taxes under protest and brought the action below to recover those taxes; it thus has standing to contest the lawfulness of the taxes imposed. "The constitutionality or legality of a tax statute may be raised in an action that is properly filed pursuant to § 59-11-1 [sic] [(§ 59-11-11 (supp. 1981) is the predecessor to § 59-2-1411 (1987))] in the district court." Id. at 1152.

II. UTAH CODE ANN. § 17-19-15 VIOLATES ARTICLE  
XIII, SECTION 5 OF THE UTAH CONSTITUTION.

A. The Supreme Court of Utah has Repeatedly Enforced  
Article XIII, Section 5 to Prohibit State Levies for County  
Purposes.

Since 1901, and as recently as 1979, the Utah Supreme Court has interpreted Article XIII, Section 5 to preclude the legislature from forcing county governments to tax for state purposes.<sup>5</sup> None of the cases interpreting Article XIII, Section 5 has overruled any of the preceding cases; and all consistently stress three salient doctrines emanating from Article XIII, Section 5:

1. The state, acting through its legislature, may impose taxes only for a state purpose.
2. The levy and collection of local ad valorem taxes is a county function, not a state function, even though the state, acting through the Tax Commission, must "assess" or value certain properties on a unitary basis.

---

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