1989

Kennecott Corporation, Morton Thiokol, Inc.,
Barrick Resources (Usa) Inc., and Hercules,
Incorporated, v. Utah State Tax Commission, R.
Hal Hansen, Roger O. Tew, Joe B. Pacheco, G. Blaine
Davis, Tom L. Allen, Edward T. Alter, Arthur L.
Monson, and Grant L. Pendleton : Brief of
Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

"[The] relative abilities of the state and municipal governments to perform the function, the degree to which the performance of the function affects the interests of those beyond the boundaries of the municipality, and the extent to which the legislation under attack will intrude upon the ability of the people within the municipality to control through their elected officials the substantive policies that affect them uniquely."

In the present case, the funding mechanism adopted by the Legislature specifically recognized and addressed the disparity in tax base between the various counties of the state. Just as with public education and the Uniform School Fund, many of the counties of the state lack the ability to fund wholly from their own revenues efficient and modernized property tax assessment and collection systems. By providing a uniform state-wide tax rate the ability to perform the constitutionally mandated responsibilities was extended to all counties, not just those with rich tax bases. Failure of counties to perform those functions affects not just taxpayers within the non-performing county, but all other taxpayers in the state through their contribution to the Uniform School Fund and the equalized funding of public education. Little is served in terms of meeting the constitutional mandate of equality of uniformity and assessment if only those counties which have adequate tax bases are properly assessed. Finally, the question must be resolved as to whether the statutory funding scheme "intrudes upon the ability of the people within the county to control through their elected officials the substantive policies that affect them

uniquely." As a general matter no element of the assessment and collection process affects local taxpayers uniquely. To the degree that the properties are mis-assessed, the state as a whole assumes liability for lost revenues in the Uniform School Fund and federal litigation under the Railroad Revitalization and Recovery Act. Appellants assert that the Act strips from local elected officials not only control over how they perform their official responsibilities, but also control over the whole taxation process and the levels of funding afforded those activities. That simply is not the case. The Legislature has uniformly mandated the functions of local officials as they relate to the property tax system. They largely act as agents for the state in the ad valorem taxation process. The levels at which they are compensated and at which they set their programs remain uniquely within local control. They remain subject to their local constituents in all matters respecting the size of their offices and budgets and the efficiency with which they perform their functions. To the extent they believe it locally necessary to expend funds for functions other than those contained within the uniform budgeting categories adopted by the State Auditor, they retain complete ability to pay for those functions out of other county revenues. This is no more nor less the case than currently exists with the Uniform School Fund and the local Uniform School Fund Levy imposed in each school district.

While the foregoing is in the context of an Art. VI, §28 discussion, the elements of municipal functions under that provision and "local purposes" under Art. XIII, §5 are closely intertwined. The balancing test established by the Court for determining whether something is "a municipal function" is equally applicable in determining whether an activity is a "local purpose." In each case the pervasive pattern of state activity and control over the assessment, collection and distribution of property taxes renders those functions as something more than "local purposes" or "municipal functions." They are not "substantive policies that affect them (the County) uniquely." West Jordan, Id. at 40.

It is settled law in this State, as in all jurisdictions throughout the Country, that the Legislature possesses the authority to require local governments to impose taxes or spend funds raised by taxes to effect state-wide purposes. Tribe v. Salt Lake City Corporation, 540 P.2d 499, 504 (Utah 1975); Salt Lake County v. Murray City Redevelopment, 598 P.2d 1339, 1343 (Utah 1979). Appellants choose to ignore this mandatory aspect of Tribe and Salt Lake County. Also ignored is the simple reality that counties annually budget, levy, and expend millions of dollars in the performance of duties mandated by the State Legislature as part of comprehensive Legislative schemes for effecting State policy. State offenses are prosecuted, state Courts are supported, state statute violators are

incarcerated, and state standards for assessing and collecting property taxes are complied with, all by County officials, all with local property tax dollars, and all pursuant to comprehensive State mandated policies. As noted in a leading treatise on County law," ... Everywhere, even in states having the aforementioned constitutional clause, (referring to a constitutional provision identical to Article XIII, §5 of the Utah Constitution), it is agreed that state legislatures can impose taxes upon counties for state purposes and can compel counties to spend for such purposes even though taxation will be required." (Emphasis supplied.) Antieau, Local Governmental Law, §41.07.

Additionally, uniform and equitable property tax assessment, collection and distribution has been a matter of general public concern since statehood. Equal and uniform assessment is required by the Constitution. The state has borne the cost of statewide reappraisal programs. Equalized levies have paid for the development of local property assessment plat maps. The timing, sequencing, and performance of tax administration duties by County officials are all subject to constitutional, statutory, and administrative control by the state. To suggest that the current Act violates local self-government or constitutes legislative imposition of a tax for local purposes ignores both history and reality. The Act is in furtherance of resolving a matter of statewide concern and as such is constitutional under all the cases which have interpreted Utah Const.

Art. XIII, §5. In conclusion, the Appellants' claims cannot overcome the presumption of constitutionality and the clear presence of a comprehensive state purpose.

POINT III

THE FUNDING MECHANISM CREATED BY THE ACT DOES
NOT VIOLATE UTAH CONSTITUTION ART. XIII, §5.

Appellants contend that the revenue redistribution aspect of the funding mechanism established by the Act violates Utah Const. Art. XIII, §5, by mandating revenue sharing between the counties. Appellants' argument is that the revenue sharing allowed under that constitutional provision must be a voluntary act engaged in by counties and may not be imposed upon counties by the Legislature. As discussed above, the revenue redistribution formula set out in the Act is not an anomaly under Utah law. It is similar in its operation to that created by the Legislature for funding the mandated minimum school program [see Utah Code Ann. §53-7-1 et seq. (1953, as amended)], or distributing local sales and use tax revenue [see Utah Code Ann. §59-12-20, et seq. (1953, as amended)]. As part of a comprehensive statewide approach to funding the property tax administration system the revenue redistribution aspects of the Act are clearly consistent with those approved by the Court in Tribe v. Salt Lake City Corp., 540 P.2d 499 (Utah 1975) and Salt Lake County v. Murray Redevelopment, 598 P.2d 1339 (Utah 1979). In each of those cases taxes properly levied by taxing entities within Salt Lake County were partially diverted to a

redevelopment agency for the purpose of alleviating the statewide problem of blighted areas. In the present case, counties in which proceeds in excess of the budgeted amounts are generated by the uniform statewide tax administration levy have those excess funds diverted to other counties in furtherance of funding programs leading to statewide uniformity of assessment and valuation. Such a program does not necessarily constitute revenue sharing between the counties, but merely a statewide funding approach to a matter of statewide concern. Accordingly, Utah Const. art. XIII §5 is irrelevant to the discussion.

Even assuming arguendo that the funding mechanism prescribed by the Act constitutes revenue sharing between the counties, Appellants' challenge to the Act on that basis must fail for several reasons. First, if the Act only allows voluntary revenue sharing, the aggrieved parties are not the plaintiffs but those counties which object to the revenue sharing. Appellants lack standing to assert the claims on behalf of the counties. Second, the clear factual evidence as set out in the Affidavit of Mr. Gardner and the joint statement of the Utah Association of Counties, Utah League of Cities and Towns and Utah School Boards Association, establishes that the Act was supported by the counties at the time of its passage. R-264-269. Subsequently the Utah Association of Counties, by resolution of all its membership, or the executive committee authorized to speak for it, has, on two separate occasions

specifically endorsed S.B. 151 including the funding mechanism established thereunder. Finally, the Utah Association of County Commissioners and County Councils representing the governing bodies of all 29 counties of the State has unanimously endorsed the Act with its revenue sharing provisions and opposed any attempt to amend or repeal it. To assert that the revenue sharing portions of the Act are contrary to the wishes of the counties ignores reality. Third, assuming further that the financing mechanism does constitute involuntary revenue sharing, Utah Const. Art. XIII §5, is silent on the question of whether the State may re-distribute revenue when a statewide purpose is involved. The amendment of Utah Const. Art. XIII §5 was to allow voluntary horizontal revenue sharing. The Amendment allows local governments to voluntarily share their revenues. It is silent as to whether the legislature is prohibited from diverting or reallocating revenues between local subdivisions. The real question surrounding the 1983 amendment is whether anywhere in that amendment exists a prohibition against the Legislature imposing a tax or requiring revenue sharing for a state purpose. Respondents submit there is not. The amendment is silent on that issue and Appellants should not be allowed to create from whole cloth a non-existent Constitutional prohibition. Barring such a constitutional prohibition against legislative action, Utah Const. Art. VI §1 clearly vests in the Legislature of the State of Utah all authority to legislate on

matters of statewide concern. Kimball v. City of Grantsville, et al., 57 P.1, 5 (Utah 1899); State ex rel. Nicholes v. Cherry, Judge, 60 P. 1103 (Utah 1900); Lehi City v. Meiling, 48 P.2d 530, 534, 535 (Utah 1935).

In summary, Appellants' Utah Const. Art. XIII, §5 challenge to the Act as "involuntary revenue sharing" must fail. Appellants lack standing to challenge a provision that may only be challenged by the affected governmental entities to wit, the counties and, second, the record adequately supports that the revenue sharing of the Act is fully supported and endorsed by all 29 counties.

Simply stated, Utah Const. Art. XIII §5 does not prohibit the diversion of local revenues to effect a statewide purpose (Tribe and Salt Lake County, supra.). Unless prohibited by the Constitution, the power to legislate on matters of State concern is vested in the Legislature. Utah Const. Art. VI §1. The 1983 amendment to Utah Const. Art. XIII §5, allowing voluntary revenue sharing between local governments is silent and does not specifically prohibit the State from creating funding mechanisms, even including horizontal revenue sharing, when a statewide purpose is involved. Accordingly, Utah Code Ann. §17-19-15, is a legitimate exercise of the reserved power of the Legislature found in Utah Const. Art. VI §1 and is not prohibited by Utah Const. Art. XIII §5.

POINT IV

APPELLANTS LACK STANDING TO CHALLENGE THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT.

Article XIII, §5 analysis is ultimately not only a legal analysis of the specific provisions of a challenged act, but also a philosophical analysis of the fundamental inter-relationships between local and state governments. Article XIII, §5 is predicated upon the assumption that remote state officials should not force local elected officials to levy taxes for what state officials might think are necessary local functions. It is a constitutional principle which speaks of co-existence, a separation of responsibility and of direct accountability between local elected officials and their constituents for purely local decisions. The thrust of the Appellants' claims is that the Act violates Art. XIII, §5 by creating too great an intrusion by the State into purely local affairs. As the keystone of Art. XIII, §5 is this inter-governmental relationship, Respondents respectfully submit that Appellants lack standing to assert the Art. XIII, §5 challenges. The only proper parties are the counties themselves and their elected officials. Respondents, Salt Lake and Tooele Counties, voluntarily budgeted in accordance with the Act and imposed the tax levy authorized thereunder. No challenge was made by Salt Lake and Tooele Counties or any of the 29 counties to the funding mechanism. Appellants stand in the position of any other taxpayer with respect to this issue. Their benefits and burdens and the impact of the Act upon them are indistinguishable from

the benefits, burdens or impacts felt by any other taxpayer. This Court in Jenkins v. Swan, 675 P.2d 1145 (Utah, 1983) described a three part analysis appropriate to the determination of standing. The first of those elements is a consideration of the traditional standing requirements. Has the appellant suffered a real and distinct injury caused by the governmental action on which the Appellant bases his claim? Mere allegations of adverse impact are insufficient. In truth, under the Act the Appellant paid less in Tooele County for the costs of assessing and collecting property taxes than if Tooele County had been obligated to rely solely on its own tax base. Respondents submit that for purposes of Art. XIII, §5 analysis the impact of the Act on the relative sovereignty and inter-relationships of local and state governments are only on those governments and are properly litigatable only by them. Taxpayers suffer none of those direct impacts. Appellants are not entities whose sovereignty is abridged by the action of the Legislature. The Legislature has merely, in its discretion, identified certain statewide public policy concerns, placed the obligations for those functions upon local government, and provided a funding mechanism to compensate for the costs of the program. The Appellants' lack of involvement in that inter-relationship or the issue of relative sovereignty precludes them from obtaining standing under the traditional tests.

The second element of the Jenkins test was the consideration of whether there are potential plaintiffs with a greater interest in the outcome who could more adequately pursue the issue. Plaintiffs, such as the Appellants, do not obtain standing merely because more appropriate plaintiffs are absent. It is clear from the analysis of the Art. XIII, §5 considerations that the only appropriate parties are the counties or their elected officials. The Appellants may not bootstrap themselves into their position merely by asserting their absence.

Finally, in Jenkins, the Court turned to the question of whether "the issues raised by the plaintiff are of sufficient public importance in and of themselves to grant him standing." Id. As taxpayers, the Appellants are no different than any other member of society. Their personal interest in the Art. XIII, §5 issue of relative sovereignty and independence of state and local governments is remote. The doctrine of "great public interest and societal impact" should not be applied.

In summary, the Respondents assert that the Appellants lack standing to raise the constitutional questions framed in the Art. XIII, §5 analysis. Questions of the balance between state and local autonomy, the ability of the State to mandate functions in furtherance of State purposes and the requirement of providing funding to support those services are appropriately raised only by the local governments affected. The Appellants'

interests are too remote and more appropriate plaintiffs exist. They suffer none of the palpable injury which would traditionally give rise to standing. Accordingly, standing should be denied and the judgment of the trial court sustained.

VI.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

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